AGENDA
CITY OF STURGEON BAY
AESTHETIC DESIGN & SITE PLAN REVIEW BOARD
Monday, February 27, 2023
6:00 p.m.
Council Chambers, City Hall
421 Michigan Street, Sturgeon Bay, WI

1. Roll call.

2. Adoption of agenda.
3. Approval of minutes from February 13, 2023.

4. Consideration of: Roof-top deck for property located at 129 N. Madison Avenue
owned by Jason Estes.

5. List of Certificates of Appropriateness approved by Chair.

6. Adjourn.

NOTE: DEVIATION FROM THE AGENDA ORDER SHOWN MAY OCCUR.

Notice is hereby given that a majority of the Common Council may be present at this meeting to gather
information about a subject over which they have decision-making responsibility. If a quorum of the
Common Council does attend, this may constitute a meeting of the Common Council and is noticed as
such, although the Common Council will not take any formal action at this meeting.

Committee members
Thad Birmingham
Nancy Schopf

Mark Struck

Dave Augustson
Kelsey Fox

Rick Wiesner

Pam Jorns

2/22/2023
3:00 p.m.
CS



AESTHETIC DESIGN AND SITE PLAN REVIEW BOARD
Monday, February 13, 2023

The Aesthetic Design and Site Plan Review Board meeting was called to order at 6:00 p.m. by Chairperson
Rick Wiesner in the Council Chambers, City Hall, 421 Michigan Street.

Roll Call: Members Rick Wiesner, Nancy Schopf, Pam Jorns, and Dave Augustson were present. Member
Thad Birmingham was excused. Members Kelsey Fox and Mark Struck were absent. Staff present were
City Administrator Josh Van Lieshout, Community Development Director Marty Olejniczak, Planner/Zoning
Administrator Stephanie Servia and Community Development Administrative Assistant Cindy Sommer.

Adoption of Agenda: Moved by Ms. Schopf, seconded by Mr. Augustson to adopt the following agenda:

Roll call.

Adoption of agenda.

Approval of minutes from January 9, 2023.

Consideration of: Driveway connection to Highway 42-57 for Kwik Trip Store located on parcels at

957 STH 42-57 and 919 S. Duluth Avenue.

e Consideration of: Building and site design of a Fleet Farm retail development located on the south
side of State Highway 42/57 across from Grant Avenue, parcel #281-66-1300060.

6. Adjourn.

el

All ayes. Motion carried.

Approval of minutes from January 9, 2023: Moved by Ms. Jorns, seconded by Ms. Schopf to approve
the minutes. All ayes. Motion carried.

Consideration of: Driveway connection to Highway 42-57 for Kwik Trip Store located on parcels at
957 STH 42-57 and 919 S. Duluth Avenue.

Mr. Olejniczak explained that the building design and site plan was approved at a previous meeting, with
the exception of a proposed access driveway off of Highway 42-57 because the DOT had not determined
at that time whether a median would be required west of the Duluth Avenue intersection. The DOT has now
determined that, if Kwik Trip puts in an access driveway, a median will be required between Duluth Avenue
and Ashland Avenue. The DOT also indicated that any new development would require the median, not
just the Kwik Trip development.

Dana Anderson of Sturgeon Bay Metal Products, 1018 Green Bay Road, explained that her family has
maintained the business at this location for 75 years on the north side of Highway 42-57. The proposed
median would require any traffic, including semi-truck deliveries, to travel past their business and find a
place to turn around before they could enter their business. She indicated there is no good place to turn a
semi around along that stretch of highway. She feels the median would be dangerous and counter-
productive to their business and questions whether Kwik Trip would consider eliminating the access
driveway and use the site for signage directing traffic to the Duluth Avenue intersection. She is otherwise
in full support of the Kwik Trip development and wants them to succeed at this location, but hopes for a
better option than a median.

Jon Jarosh of Destination Door County, 1015 Green Bay Road, indicates their business will be impacted
by the proposed median because west/south-bound traffic will not be able to turn into their business. He
believes this would essentially cut their customer base in half. He appreciates the work the City has put into
keeping the property owners informed and indicates he has reached out to Kwik Trip to acquire an
easement that will allow Destination Sturgeon Bay to use their driveway for business purposes. He feels
that Kwik Trip is open to this idea and they are actively working together.

Ms. Jorns motioned to deny the access driveway on Highway 42-57. Motion failed for lack of a second. Ms.
Jorns questioned whether a median could eventually be extended all the way from Duluth Avenue to Grant

1



Avenue if the Fleet Farm development moves forward. Mr. Olejniczak indicated that is an unknown at this
point and at the discretion of the DOT, but it is a possibility.

Mr. Augustson motioned to approve the driveway connection on Highway 42-57. Motion failed for lack of a
second.

Vern Smith of Sturgeon Bay Metal Products questioned the data on accidents in front of their building and
indicated nothing exists because it has always been a safe location. He feels their business is being
negatively impacted for no apparent reason.

Eric Moe of 17 N. Hudson Avenue and an employee of Sturgeon Bay Metal Products indicated that a sign
directing traffic to Duluth Avenue would be sufficient and is not in favor of the median. He doesn’t believe
Kwik Trip needs an additional access driveway on the highway and a median would create problems with
delivery trucks entering their business. He also believes the median will create accidents when travelers
attempt to “jump” the median when traveling from the east/north after missing the Duluth Avenue
intersection.

Mr. Olejniczak indicated there is a private gravel road that runs behind Sturgeon Bay Metal Products that
may be a potential option for semi deliveries to their business, but that would have to be looked into further.
He also explained that the Board could put conditions on their approval of the access driveway, such as
requiring that Kwik Trip grant easements to the Verlo Mattress and Destination Door County properties, or
see if Kwik Trip would be open to helping the negatively affected businesses on the north side of the
highway obtain better access to their businesses.

Eric Moe does not feel the gravel road would be a good option because it would require semis to make too
many difficult turns. Mr. Augustson suggested that the business could enlarge their driveway to make semi
access easier for turning around.

Carl Wennerstrand of 4408 Cherry Rd, Sturgeon Bay, feels that this issue is being rushed and more time
should be taken to research and review the options and this should be set aside for future review.

Mr. Augustson motioned to approve the highway driveway connection with the condition that Kwik Trip
grant easements to the Verlo Mattress and Destination Door County properties. Ms. Schopf seconded the
motion. Mr. Augustson and Ms. Schopf voted aye, Ms. Jorns and Mr. Wiesner voted nay. Motion failed.

Mr. Wiesner motioned to deny the highway driveway access. Ms. Jorns seconded. Mr. Wiesner and Ms.
Jorns voted aye, Mr. Augustson and Ms. Schopf voted nay. Motion failed.

Ms. Jorns motioned to send this matter to Council to decide. Motion seconded by Mr. Wiesner. All ayes,
motion carried.

A break was taken at 6:42 to deal with technology issues. Meeting resumed at 6:49.

Consideration of: Building and site design of a Fleet Farm retail development located on the south
side of State Highway 42/57 across from Grant Avenue, parcel #281-66-1300060.

Mr. Olejniczak explained that Fleet Farm is looking to develop the property at the far west side of the city
on the south side of Highway 42-57 across from Grant Avenue and they need two zoning approvals before
moving forward. The first is the building design and site plan Certificate of Appropriateness and the second
is conditional use approval, which is scheduled for the Plan Commission meeting on Wednesday of this
week. The agenda packet has a summary of the design guidelines to be used and any issues that staff
found. One correction is that paragraph 2(a) should read that traffic signals MAY be installed rather than
will be installed. The DOT has not made a determination on that at this time. A new signage packet was
also presented to the members that addressed problems that were pointed out to Fleet Farm prior to the
meeting, including that the proposed monument sign has been moved out of the right-of-way to the other
side of the frontage road.



Jeff Peterson of CR Structures Group, Appleton, together with Kip Golden, Derrick Hoernke and Jeff Yersin
representing Fleet Farm, explained they have been working hard with staff to meet all of the City’s
requirements. The proposal is for an approximately 91,000 square foot main building with a separate
convenience store, gas station and car wash. Mr. Peterson showed a PowerPoint presentation touching on
all aspects of their development. This is a standard layout that Fleet Farm uses, including the standard
orange and black colors. They worked with the DOT to make the frontage road a public road. The 4800
square foot convenience store will be on the west part of the lot when you come in the driveway and have
two car washes. Mr. Peterson stressed that Fleet Farm feels strongly about giving back to the communities
with local sponsorships and donations. They have a store manager on site.

Mr. Peterson indicated this is the smallest of their store prototypes, the size of which is based on the
population of the city they are developing in. Mr. Hoernke indicated the smaller store offers a slightly
reduced offering of their products but the building has been designed to have a higher product density than
their larger stores. They are looking to break ground this summer with about 15 months to build before
opening, depending upon conditions and materials.

The city will maintain the street as an extension of Grant Avenue and it could be extended in the future if
there is more development to the west. The DOT required that it must be a public street and the street
design meets their criteria. There is a small portion of wetland that has been actively farmed that will be
filled in at the location of the convenience store. A sidewalk may be required if the intersection is controlled
and if the sidewalk on the north side of the highway reaches the highway with other future development on
the north side.

Mr. Olejniczak further explained that the photometric design of the lighting plan was illegible and requests
Fleet Farm provide a more clear copy. The fixtures all look good but they need to know the locations of the
light poles in the parking lot and that there is no light spillover. There is also no indication in the plans
showing where the greenhouse, pet wash and other outbuildings will be located. They have more parking
spaces planned than are required so some of those spaces could be used for the seasonal greenhouse.

Ms. Schopf motioned to approve the building and site design as presented, with lighting plan to be reviewed
by the Chair. Mr. Augustson seconded the motion. All ayes, motion carried.

Adjourn: Moved by Ms. Jorns, seconded by Mr. Augustson to adjourn. All ayes. Motion carried. The
meeting adjourned at 7:08 p.m.

stﬁglly submitted,
=7 =

Cindy Sommer /
Community Development
Administrative Assistant



Staff Report: Sonny’s Italian Kitchen & Pizzeria Rooftop Deck - 129 N Madison Ave

Background: Sonny’s Italian Kitchen & Pizzeria located at 129 N Madison Avenue is looking to
remove the existing roof on their “Tiki bar” and replace it with a flat rooftop to place a deck
above. Sonny’s is located in the C-2 zoning district. The proposed deck will encompass the
footprint of the former roof which is 18 feet by 27 feet (486 square feet). The proposed deck
meets the required setbacks for a waterfront project which is 25 feet from the bulkhead line.
The rooftop deck will feature metal railing with steel cables, an EPDM rubber roof, treated
sleepers, composite decking, and treated plywood sheathing. The rooftop deck will be placed
on the existing concrete block walls which can support 35,500 |bs. There is an existing staircase
that will meet the proposed deck. This proposed rooftop deck is before the Board because this
project will create a moderate change in aesthetics to Sonny’s.

Considerations: Below are pertinent guidelines for the Board to consider:

e Buildings should be sited and designed to be aesthetically pleasing as viewed from
adjoining public streets. Excessively long, unbroken building facades shall be avoided.
Building materials and design features shall be consistent with the general design theme
and/or proposed use of the development. The building materials used in the plan for the
deck seem to complement the existing building and breakup the fagade by introducing a
new design element.

e The use of identical building materials on all sides of a building that are visible from
public streets is encouraged. There are repeating materials and the support for the deck
is already existing.

e Rhythm/re-occurring patterns in windows and storefronts are encouraged. There are
repeating materials and the support for the deck is already existing.

e The use of door and window canopies and awnings is encouraged. There are currently
no plans for an awning for the rooftop deck.

e The use of special architectural features, including projecting windows, towers, turrets,
arches and cupolas are encouraged, particularly on corner buildings. The existing
building has many different architectural features and the rooftop deck will increase the
diversity of features.

e Fences and retaining walls shall be surfaced, painted, landscaped or otherwise treated to
blend with their surroundings. The railing around the deck is metal with steel cables, this
will be less distracting than if there was a solid railing.

e Exterior light fixtures shall be shielded such that direct beams of light are not cast
skyward or onto adjoining property. We do not know if they plan on having lighting on
the rooftop deck at this time.

e Lighting of an intensity beyond which is reasonably required to conduct operations or
maintain security is discouraged. We do not know if they plan on having lighting on the
rooftop deck at this time.



e Lighting fixtures and devices promoting energy efficiency are encouraged. We do not
know if they plan on having lighting on the rooftop deck at this time.

Overall, City Staff believes that the proposed rooftop deck will blend in with the existing
architecture and feature elements that are present in other locations on the building while also
breaking up the design by introducing a new design element. The railing design Sonny’s has
proposed will have minimal impact to the design due to the use of steel cables. We do not
know what Sonny’s plans are on whether there will be any awnings or lights above the deck.
City Staff recommends that the deck plan is approved as presented.

Prepared By: AAW /5 1. 701%

Stephanie Servia Date
Planner / Zoning Administrator

Reviewed By: K//% 6%

/- Deud e Q093
L~

Martin Olejniczak Date
Community Development Director




CITY OF STURGEON BAY
AESTHETIC DESIGN & SITE PLAN REVIEW BOARD
APPLICATION FOR CERTIFICATE OF APPROPRIATENESS

Name:. “)(LSOY\ g%
Owner of Premises: JOJ SOYL ESFCS

Address or Legal Description of Premises:

129 N_Madison Aye

Statement of Specific Item Requested for Approval:

)
Rt oy det oy NAnS

2)10/2033 @MMM&

Date Ap jcant

Date Received:

Staff Signature:

Date Approved/Denied:




42" METAL RAILING /4" O0.C. STAINLESS CABLE

ECOMPOSITE DECKING=;

" TREATED 2X SLEEPERS @12" 0.C.

EPDM RUBBER ROOFING

+<—3."—}

i =
GUTTER pPITCH
|

+=1/2" TREATED PLYWOOD SHEATHING ————

2X12 JOI1STS @12" 0.C.

1 T

3!_6"

GUTTER
TO
COLLECT

n M
42" METAL RAILING

[h STEEL CABLE 4" 0.C.

EE%EPDM ROOFING——|

TREATED 2X SLEEPERS 12" 0.C.

T 9%12 DECK W/ 1/2" 112 PITCH

EXISTING BEAM

’ |

B

AN

4' CANTILEVER

ROOFTOP

42" RAIL HEIGHT

METAL POSTS & HANDRAIL W/ STEEL CABLE 4" O.C.

Y/ 4

ﬁ;l 2 12PITCH T T CANTILEVER
I L L
|
T REMOVYE ROOF
B BLOCK AL CAN T - =t IHHH\MM
Surrort o500 tps - TEXISTING 11T
LT T BLOCK L L [Founpation
T TBUILDING 1 Y
L exisTiNG FoUNDATION-
SECTION
-+ff 2
B

11/2" 1 12 PITCH W/ TREATED SLEEPS 12" 0.C. & COMPOSITE DECKING——

IR

UNEW2X1ZDECKIV\UEPDMRUBBERROOFINGU 0T 0 1 1

(2) 13/4" X 11 /8

EXISTING LVYL BEAM

TO SUPPORT DECK
JoIsTS

[CEXISTINGT ]
=BUILDING_ |

T

-

l

1111

CONTRACTOR SHALL VERIFY DIMENSIONS & CONDITIONS & ASSUME RESPONSIBILITY

|

EXISTING STAIRS

O

0
0 o
£8]
s O
s QG
o C o
¢ U
2 35T
| ..
tRRE
=
=
0
DATE:
2/10/2023
SCALE:
1/4||=1|_O"
SHEET:

P-1




STRUCTURAL NOTES

NSTRUCTION ABLE TO CARRY 100 LBS PER SQ FT LOAD

EXISTING CONCRETE BLOCK WALLS W/ FOUNDATION

DOUGLAS FUR JOISTS 12" O.C.
ABLE TO SUPPORT 180LBS PER FT
2' CANTILEVER ABLE TO CARRY 160LBS PER FT

112" TREATED PLYWOOD SHEATHING

EPDM RUBBER ROOFING

2X TREATED SLEEPERS
12" 0.C. W/ COMPOSITE
DECKING ATTACHED

27X18= 459
SQFT

TOTAL LOAD 459X100=

: TING  EACHWALL TOTAL
EXISTING
O (2)1 3/4"X11 1/2"0= 600 LBS TOTAL

2‘ LVL BEAM
( HoA

Pt T 0 TR N | Py

METAL RAILING ABLE TO HOLD
200 LBS CONCENTRATED LOAD

45900

18"

=0 3/0"=

27

GUTTER

1 T

1!

1L

s

EXISTING 11 1/2" LVL BE

ADD

STAIRS|YP

EXISTING 1

2X12 DOUG FUR JOISTS
@12" o0.C.

11/2" LYL

BEA

@12" o0.C.
18"

2X12 DOUG FURWJOISTS

_—— — — | — —

Ut
N ]
N
(§))
)

FT

<
|

|

|

i

I

L

|

|

|

EXISTING STAIRS

upP

| |
27 2X12 DOUG FUR JOISTS

14'

EXISTING BEAM

J4—/—1 1
A" AN —T—a—um iar —3 | LA —

EXISTING
lPOST

14" 112 PITCH

@12" oc

2X12 TREATED JOISTS

EXISTING
POST

EXISTING

(2) 13/4"X11 1/2"
LVL BEAM

3068

5040RS

18'

1
U
X
q)
-
Z
6

@12" 0C

BUILDING

4040RS

ql

4' CANTILEVER

NEW DECK ABOVE

Ve L]
|

18'

42" METAL RAILING W/ Pl.@a?;agf'su_l_
STEEL CABLES @ 4"

ROOFTOP DECK
FRAMING

ELEVATION 1

CONTRACTOR SHALL VERIFY DIMENSIONS & CONDITIONS & ASSUME RESPONSIBILITY

ROOFTOP

g =
V& (%
.§. o
i G
2 C 1 M
¢ oo
2 QT
w0 < _
g 0 §C
=
<!
(|
DATE:
12/10/2023
SCALE:
1/4l|=1l_0"
SHEET:

P-2




T20¢/62/€0

eLI9zzid s,Auuos



12coz/62/e0

eLI9zzid s,Auuos



... from the Web Map of ...
( //'www.co.door.wi.gov )

p Door County, Wisconsin
Printed 02/22/2023 courtesy of Door County Land Information Office ... fOr all seasons!

Door County can not and does not make any rep tation regarding the or comp
nor the error-free nature, of information depicted on this map. This information is provided to users "as is".
The user of this information assumes any and all risks associated with this information. Door County makes

no warranty or representation, either express or implied, as to the accuracy, completeness, or fitness
for a particular purpose of this information. The Web Map is only a compilation of information and is NOT
to be considered a legally recorded map or a legal land survey to be relied upon.



(e)eT LT uewuieyd|€z0z/12/T usis punos3 G x g 193435 pJigan|g ZTET| Yyainyd isideg Ateajed €7-80-V
ul syuawalinbaul yoegias 393w ISNIA
uewuIeyd |€z0z/9T/T wP404,, 9AY YIn|ng 'S Ot SJIOJO UOS|O wir €C-L0Y
uSIs 19UIge PAUNOW ||BM PIJRUIWN||I [BAO ,8/T T ¥ X L6
“Jleyd Ag pamainai 3q o1 ueld 3uinysi pieog sav|€202/€1/C Jleyd Ag pamainal aq 01 uejd Suinysin| py Aeg usauo £99T B 6SST wJied 199|4 €2-90-V
‘ysem Jed 13 uollels sed ‘2103s du13AU0I Y bs 008y pue
Suip|ing |1e394 Y bs 000‘T6 40 uejd aus 1 uSisap Suip|ing
"W} B 1B )|emapls uo g Aew usis uewuieyd |€z0z/6/c suSis pJeoq ydImpues awely-e 9AY UOSIPBA *S 09 2711 ‘@siwoud Mjuid €7-50-Y
pJeoq yaimpues auo Ajuo 1eyl 10N pue ‘030] Auedwod yum udis [jlem y3ipoeq punos ,#SX, S
uewuieyd DdH|€20z/TE/T J|BMIpIS 9n0qE \§°8 SWedy 9AV PJIE N 6T D77 ‘swued oue|) €C-¥0-H
|ezaw Sunsixs ul udis Suildafoad pajeulwniji-uou 09X,
uewuJieyd|€coz/Lz/T apedey 1se3 uo uaJis pajeulwn||l py Aegusaio 116 syonqJeis €7-€0-VY
.09 13 9pede} yHou Uo SI9133| |duueyd pajeulwn||l 8T
uewIRYD |€202/YT/T 030] yum usis ||em pajeulwn||i ,0vX,E8TX, 0 ANV YIBT S €zg| Awno) sooq AnsiuliN €C-20v
uewuleyd |€z0z/6T/T 9pedej JUOJ4 UO SISNI| [duueYd pajeulwn||l SOTX,ST¥E py Aegusaio TT6 1R1v €C-10°v
suoipuo) Ag panoiddy| panosddy uondusag uoned’0] juedyddy| Jaquinn
aleq Jwiad

193yspeauds pieog usisaq 21312Yisay




